
dc.ventura.org    •     805/654-2620

VENTURA COUNTY 
SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLAN COMMITTEE 

CEO POINT MUGU Conference Room – 4th floor 

Hall of Administration, Ventura County Government Center 
800 S. Victoria Avenue, Ventura, CA  93009 

ZOOM:  https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6776938984?pwd=eGRiaDdBR2JlZ3Vsd0xjeHFhWGh3dz09&omn=89104646913 

February 15, 2024 
2:00 p.m. 

1. Public Comments

2. Committee Member Comments

3. Minutes of Regular Meeting – December 14, 2023

4. Q4 2023 Principal Quarterly Client Report

5. IRS Ruling Request Board Letter Review

If any accommodations are needed, please contact the Safe Harbor program at 805-654-2620 or by email at: 
Safe.Harbor@ventura.org. 

Requests should be made as soon as possible but at least 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting. 



VENTURA COUNTY 
SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT COMMITTEE 

 
       Point Mugu Conference Room, 4th Floor 
Hall of Administration, County Government Center  

800 S. Victoria Ave, Ventura CA 93009 
 

     Meeting Minutes for December 14, 2023 
2:00 p.m. 

 
Members present   Members absent   Also present 
Kaye Mand    Shawn Atin    Patti Dowdy 
Emily Gardner         Patty Zoll 
Jeff Burgh         Andrew Gratt 
Sue Horgan         Amanda Diaz 
          Eric Lee 
          Eric Schlossberg 

 
 Ms. Mand called the meeting to order at 3:51 p.m. 

 
1. Public Comments.  
 None. 
 
2. Committee Member Comments.  

None. 
 

3.  Minutes of Regular Meeting September 19, 2023 
Motion to approve: 1. Mr. Burgh  2. Ms. Gardner         Motion Carries 

i. Ms. Horgan abstained. 
   
4.  Q3 2023 Principal Quarterly Client Report 

Ms. Zoll provided an overview of the Asset Allocation Analysis and Investment Report from 
Principal Global Advisors which is being presented for the Supplemental Retirement 
Committee’s (the Committee) review. Areas of note in the review regarded the Investment 
Policy Statement (IPS) and evaluation criteria pursuant to asset allocation. This range of 
allocation included 0-25% in a cash account, 25-55% fixed income, and 45-75% equity assets 
within the total plan balance. The current allocation stands at 1.1%, 39.4%, and 59.5%, 
respectively to the order of allocation mentioned above. The 10-year return of 5.99% for Q3-
2023 is slightly shy of the return objective criteria to meet or exceed 7% return over every 10-
year measurement period. The objective benchmark criteria for investment results for the 3 and 
5-year periods was not met in both instances for Q3-2023. Mr. Eric Lee, Senior Portfolio 
Manager, will be presenting the findings of the full analysis to the Committee. 

Mr. Lee gave an overview of market performance in the U.S. Equities, Non-U.S. Equites, 
Fixed Income, and “Other” categories to show overall economic performance. In general, Mr. 



SRP Committee Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2023 

 

2 
 

Lee felt the year leading to the end of Q3 was positive by most standards although showed Q3 
in the negative mainly in response to the Federal Reserve (FED) raising interest rates. Bonds 
were on the downside over the previous 12-month period.  

In regard to the cash flow portion of the benchmarks, net contributions showed a negative 
result as more funds were leaving the plan than being brought in. This was in response to 
participants rolling over their funds out of the plan asset total. As of the prior day to this 
meeting, December 13, 2023, assets stood at roughly $26.2 million. Mr. Lee noted that 
although October showed negative findings, November resulted in a “bounce back” within the 
stock and bond markets. Within the asset allocation of the Plan, variances were minimal in both 
negative and positive aspects. Overall, Mr. Lee highlighted, the equity asset class had a 
variance of -.53% from target allocation and the fixed income and cash/cash equivalent asset 
class had variances of .44% and .08%, respectively. The fixed income portion of the plan 
assets had a tumultuous past 3 years however Mr. Lee sees it in a good position for future 
growth. Overall, the total portfolio performance over Q3 was down 3.79% but year-to-date and 
one-year numbers were on the positive side with the year-to-date being up 4.81% and one 
year numbers were up 12.08%. As noted by Mr. Lee, any revenue sharing is returned to the 
trust and expense ratios are paid through revenue.  

 
A. Motion to Receive and file the Q3 2023 Principal Quarterly Client Report and Asset 

Allocation Analysis: 
 Motion to approve: 1. Ms. Gardner    2. Mr. Burgh       Motion Carries 

 
5. Consideration of IRS Ruling Request 

Ms. Patti Dowdy, Employee Benefits Manager, gave a summation of the agenda item that is 
in front of the Committee for action. At the April 13, 2023 meeting, a letter from Ventura County 
Employees Retirement Association (VCERA) was presented that was in support of allowing 
previously ineligible current County employees who contributed to the Safe Harbor Plan and are 
current VCERA members purchase service credit in VCERA for the time period(s) they were in 
a position excluded from VCERA membership. This would essentially mean that active 
employees with Safe Harbor time are able to purchase that time with VCERA when they 
separate from county service and elect to convert their Safe Harbor benefit to the SRP 457 DC 
Plan. In addition, at the April 13, 2023 meeting, the Committee requested that staff reach out to 
VCERA to garner some idea of the financial impact to the County should this population 
purchase their available time from VCERA. While VCERA has provided some general 
information for consideration to the Committee at the August 8, 2023 meeting, it was determined 
that a clear picture was not presented to estimate the pension reserves transfer increase should 
the roughly 1,7000 eligible employees decide to purchase the prior time in Safe Harbor. The 
Committee requested additional information from VCERA that includes the total amount of the 
pension reserve transfer for all eligible Safe Harbor members and the impact on the retirement 
rate to the County with the assumption that the majority of eligible Safe Harbor members seek 
the purchase of the prior service credit based on two criteria: 

1) A retirement age of 52 for Safety members, and 
2) A retirement age of 59 for general members. 
 



SRP Committee Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2023 

 

3 
 

The motion to postpone the decision was made and passed until the Committee 
received this information from VCERA depicting a more solid understanding of the 
fiscal impact to the County. 
 

VCERA is actively pursuing an actuarial evaluation impact study to determine an overall 
cost to the County and the estimated pension reserves transfer increase, should the majority of 
the 1,700 employees decide to purchase the prior time in Safe Harbor. Ms. Emily Gardner, 
County of Ventura Counsel, brought insight into the decision that although the Committee has 
the authority to seek the IRS ruling letter it does not fall under the Committee’s guidelines for 
funding the acquisition of the IRS determination letter. The reasoning behind this concern, Ms. 
Gardner states, is that the ultimate cost of seeking such determination is not within the confines 
of the Committee as the funds appropriated for obtaining said letter from the IRS are from 
County funds and will result in adjustment to the retirement rate which in turn impacts the 
County budget. Her legal counsel suggested sending the final decision to the Board of 
Supervisors for a vote on seeking the IRS determination letter.  

A motion was made to direct Deferred Compensation staff to take the decision to the Board 
of Supervisors for the funding of the study.  

 
A. Motion to Direct Deferred Compensation Staff to Take the Decision to the Board of 

Supervisors: 
 Motion to approve: 1. Mr. Burgh   2. Ms. Gardner    Motion Carries 

 
 
6.  Escheatment Process for Unclaimed Safe Harbor SRP Benefits 

Ms. Zoll provided a synopsis of the topic for discussion before the Committee. In part, Ms. 
Zoll referenced that in 2021 the SRP  was established to provide a more portable and 
accessible benefit for employees who qualified for Plan participation. At that time, there were 
approximately 11,000 inactive members who were entitled to, yet not receiving, a benefit. Over 
the subsequent 2 years, Deferred Compensation departmental staff have worked and 
successfully reduced that number by over 50% to roughly 5,400 members who were entitled to, 
yet not receiving, a benefit.  

During the previous SRP Committee meeting, John Garrett, Principal Actuary for the 
County’s actuarial firm Cavanaugh Macdonald Consulting (CMC), presented actuarial findings in 
their valuation report and as a result, the topic of ‘unable to locate’ inactive members was 
discussed. Mr. Garrett referenced a process know as the Escheatment Process – a legal path 
the County may take to release the unclaimed benefits to the State. This process would release 
the County from its liability to maintain unclaimed benefits on record. This process is the 
reversion of unclaimed or abandoned assets to the State in accordance with their escheat and 
unclaimed property statutes. At this time, the Committee showed interest in this process and 
instructed staff to work with Counsel on the legalities of this process and incorporation into the 
SRP Plan Document. 

The current SRP Plan Document does not permit for the escheatment process and upon the 
recommendation of Ms. Gardner, the Committee would be wise to seek outside consultation 
with specialty tax counsel as the process for escheatment/forfeiture are vastly complicated with 



SRP Committee Meeting Minutes 
December 14, 2023 

 

4 
 

regards to compliance aspects. A motion was made to direct staff in seeking outside counsel to 
research and provide opinion on the escheatment process for the Safe Harbor SRP. 

 
A. Motion to Direct Staff to Seek Outside Counsel for Escheatment Process: 
 Motion made: 1. Mr. Burgh     2. Ms. Gardner          Motion Carries    

 
Ms. Mand adjourned the meeting at 4:38 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
Andrew Gratt 
Deferred Compensation Personnel Assistant 
 



COUNTY OF VENTURA 
MEMORANDUM 

HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION 
 
DATE: February 15, 2024 

TO:  Supplemental Retirement Plan Committee 

FROM: Patty Zoll, Supplemental Retirement Program Manager 

SUBJECT: Principal Semi-Annual Investment Review 
 
Background 

Attached is the current investment report from Principal Global Advisors for the quarter 
ending December 31, 2023 (Q4) and an Asset Allocation Analysis. Included in the report 
are the asset allocation overview, market values and flows, and the Plan’s investment 
performance review, which illustrates the evaluation criteria pursuant to the Investment 
Policy Statement.  

The Investment Policy Statement (IPS) set an asset allocation range of 0-25% cash, 25-
55% fixed income, and 45-75% equity. The Plan’s allocation for cash was within the set 
range at 0.7%. The fixed-income allocation was within the set range at 39%. Equity 
allocation was also within the set range at 60.4% for Q4-23. (p.12) 

Total 10-year returns of 6.55% fall slightly short of meeting the stated return objective 
criteria to meet or exceed a 7% return over every 10-year period for Q4-23. (p.15) 

The objective benchmark criteria for investment results to meet or exceed the index 
benchmark for the 3-year and 5-year periods was not met for both the 3-year and 5-year 
periods in Q4-23. (p.15) 

Mr. Eric Lee, Senior Portfolio Manager, Principal Custody Solutions, will present the 
Quarterly Client Report and an Asset Allocation Analysis to the Committee.  

Recommended Action Item 

• Receive and file the Principal Quarterly Client report and Asset Allocation 
Analysis.  

 

If you have any questions, please email me at: patty.zoll@ventura.org. 

Attachment(s) 
• Q4 2023 Principal Quarterly Client Report 

 



OCIO Solutions 

County Of Ventura  
Retirement Plan DB

QUARTERLY CLIENT REPORT
As of December 31, 2023



Agenda

Team overview 3 

Market outlook 4 

Cash flow 11 

Investment policy summary 12 

Asset allocation 13 

Performance 15 

Historical benchmark comparison 24 

Important information 28 

Portfolio profile 31 

 
 2



Investment advisory team 

 
 

Eric A. Lee 
Sr. Portfolio Strategist 
OCIO Solutions 
38 Years of industry experience 
2 Years of firm experience 
Lee.Eric@Principal.com 
213-500-0344 

 

Kevin J. Eichinger, CIMA 
Portfolio Strategist 
OCIO Solutions 
31 Years of industry experience 
2 Years of firm experience 
eichinger.kevin@principal.com 
858-344-2431 

 

Steve Guggenberger 
Managing Director – Advisory Services 
OCIO Solutions 
35 Years of industry experience 
2 Years of firm experience 
Guggenberger.Steve@Principal.com 
763-232-3663 

 

Team 

Overview 
 

 
 3



 
 

 
 4



2023 recap: The stage is set for a pivot

Source: Clearnomics, Standard & Poor’s, Bloomberg, Principal Asset Management – Quick takes on capital markets (December 29, 2023). Data as of December 28, 2023. 

Stock and bond annual returns
1990 – present 

INSIGHT:
Markets surprised to the upside in 2023, despite a host of challenges, and fought off a widely expected 
recession to finish the year near record highs. Looking ahead to 2024, the market rebound, combined with the 
Federal Reserve’s rate pause, has set the stage for a long-anticipated pivot toward rate cuts.

 
 5



 
 

 
 6



INSIGHT:
While the ‘Magnificent 7’ accounted for the majority of the S&P 500 gains in 2023, this narrow performance 
concentration is finally showing signs of broadening out. Since 10-year U.S. Treasury yields peaked in late 
October, the equal-weighted S&P 500 has outperformed the Magnificent 7, suggesting investors may no longer 
need to depend on the strength of these seven giants, and can instead begin to consider the cyclicality of small-
cap stocks. 

U.S. market leadership: A broader story in the making

Source: Standard & Poor’s, Bloomberg, Principal Asset Management - Quick takes on capital markets (January 5, 2024). Data as of December 31, 2023. 
Note: Magnificent 7 comprised of Alphabet, Apple, Amazon, Meta, Microsoft, Nvidia, Tesla.

Magnificent 7 performance vs. S&P 500 equal-weighted and market-cap-weighted
Calendar year 2023, rebased to 100 at January 1 and again at October 19

 
 7



 
 

 
 8



 
 

 
 9



 
 

 
 10



Cash flow 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and should not be relied upon to make investment decisions. It is not possible to 
invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

 Three 
month 

Year 
to-date 

Fiscal year 
  to-date One year Three year Five year Ten year 

Beginning  
market value 24,588,312 26,350,460 26,301,223 26,350,460 33,338,999 24,699,763 17,496,308 

Contributions 215,040 405,158 227,729 405,158 – – – 

Withdrawals -510,660 -3,764,534 -1,269,081 -3,764,534 – – – 

Net  
Contributions 

– – – – -1,523,157 -1,990,679 78,633 

Gains/loss 2,357,743 3,659,351 1,390,565 3,659,351 2,059,699 11,166,458 16,300,599 

Other – – – – – – – 

Ending 
market value 26,650,436 26,650,436 26,650,436 26,650,436 26,650,436 26,650,436 26,650,436 

Portfolio inception: December 31, 1999 

 
 11



Investment policy summary 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

For asset allocation purposes and aggregate portfolio performance reporting, asset class category assignments for individual investment options are determined by OCIO Solutions and may differ from the 
assigned Morningstar category for a given investment. 

 
 

  

 

 

Actual 

allocation 
 

 

Target 

allocation 
 

Asset class Actual 
allocation Minimum allocation Target 

allocation Maximum allocation Variance 

EQUITY 16,089,491.54 60.37% 45.00% 60.00% 75.00% 0.37% 
LARGE VALUE 4,238,210.36 15.90% 8.00% 15.90% 23.00% 0.00% 
LARGE GROWTH 4,229,313.50 15.87% 8.00% 15.90% 23.00% -0.03% 
U.S. MID CAP EQUITY 1,920,956.59 7.21% 4.00% 7.20% 12.00% 0.01% 
U.S. SMALL CAP EQUITY 1,615,406.69 6.06% 3.00% 6.00% 10.00% 0.06% 
DIVERSIFIED EMERGING MKTS 830,489.65 3.12% 1.00% 3.00% 6.00% 0.12% 
DEVELOPED MARKETS 3,255,114.75 12.21% 6.00% 12.00% 19.00% 0.21% 

FIXED INCOME 10,382,681.25 38.96% 25.00% 39.00% 55.00% -0.04% 
INTERMEDIATE BOND 9,298,081.50 34.89% 18.00% 35.00% 54.00% -0.11% 
GLOBAL BONDS 1,084,599.75 4.07% 1.00% 4.00% 7.00% 0.07% 

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 178,263.85 0.67% 0.00% 1.00% 25.00% -0.33% 
MONEY MARKET 178,263.85 0.67% 0.00% 1.00% 25.00% -0.33% 

Total market value: $26,650,436.64   Policy as amended on: 10/02/2023 

60.4%

39.0%

0.7%

EQUITY

FIXED INCOME

CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS

60.0%

39.0%

1.0%

EQUITY

FIXED INCOME

CASH & CASH
EQUIVALENTS

 
 12



Asset allocation overview 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

For asset allocation purposes and aggregate portfolio performance reporting, asset class category assignments for individual investment options are determined by OCIO Solutions and may differ from the 
assigned Morningstar category for a given investment. 

 
 

  

 

 

 
Fund Market value Actual allocation 

 U.S. EQUITY 12,003,887.14 45.04% 
 LARGE VALUE   

 PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK LC VAL IDX CIT N 4,238,210.36 15.90% 
 LARGE GROWTH   

 PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK LC GR IDX CIT N 4,229,313.50 15.87% 
 MID-CAP BLEND   

 PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK S&P MIDC IDX CIT N 1,920,956.59 7.21% 
 SMALL BLEND   

 PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK RUS 2000 IDX CIT N 515,451.57 1.93% 
 PRINCIPAL/MULTI-MANAGER SC CIT N 1,099,955.12 4.13% 
 NON-U.S. EQUITY 4,085,604.40 15.33% 
 FOREIGN LARGE BLEND   

 PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK INTL EQ IDX CIT N 3,255,114.75 12.21% 
 DIVERSIFIED EMERGING MKTS   

 FIDELITY® EMERGING MARKETS IDX 830,489.65 3.12% 
 FIXED INCOME 10,382,681.25 38.96% 
 INTERMEDIATE CORE BOND   

 ALLSPRING CORE BOND CIT N 3,001,523.41 11.26% 
 PRINCIPAL/BLKRK US AGG BD IDX CIT N 3,288,235.41 12.34% 
 INTERMEDIATE CORE-PLUS BOND   

 PRINCIPAL/DODGE & COX INTER BD CIT N 3,008,322.68 11.29% 
 WORLD BOND   

 INVESCO INTERNATIONAL BOND R6 1,084,599.75 4.07% 
 MONEY MARKET 178,263.85 0.67% 
 MONEY MARKET   

 
 13



Asset allocation overview 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

For asset allocation purposes and aggregate portfolio performance reporting, asset class category assignments for individual investment options are determined by OCIO Solutions and may differ from the 
assigned Morningstar category for a given investment. 

 
 

  

 

 
Fund Market value Actual allocation 

 PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK S/T INVESTMENT S1 178,263.85 0.67% 
Total market value: $26,650,436.64  

 
 14



Portfolio performance 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

For asset allocation purposes and aggregate portfolio performance reporting, asset class category assignments for individual investment options are determined by OCIO Solutions and may differ from the 
assigned Morningstar category for a given investment. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and should not be relied 
upon to make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

Time weighted returns Three 
month 

Year 
to-date 

Fiscal year 
  to-date 

One 
year 

Three 
year 

Five 
year 

Ten 
year 

Since  
inception 

Inception 
date 

Total portfolio performance (Net) 9.65% 14.93% 5.49% 14.93% 2.68% 8.08% 6.31% 5.10% 12/31/1999 
County Of Ventura SRP Custom Benchmark 9.69% 15.30% 5.89% 15.30% 3.01% 8.27% 6.55% 5.75%  

Excess return -0.04% -0.37% -0.40% -0.37% -0.33% -0.19% -0.24% -0.65%  
Morningstar Allocation – 50% to 70% Equity Peer Average 8.62% 13.51% 5.76% 13.51% 3.67% 8.10% 5.77% 4.83%  
          

Total portfolio performance (Gross) 9.65% 15.47% 5.89% 15.47% 3.06% 8.50% 6.78% 5.65% 12/31/1999 
County Of Ventura SRP Custom Benchmark 9.69% 15.30% 5.89% 15.30% 3.01% 8.27% 6.55% 5.75%  

Excess return -0.04% 0.18% 0.00% 0.18% 0.05% 0.24% 0.23% -0.10%  
          

Asset class return information 
EQUITY 11.50% 21.38% 7.26% 21.38% 6.80% 12.85% 9.56% 6.04% 12/31/1999 

County of Ventura Equity Composite 11.52% 21.71% 7.44% 21.71% 7.13% 12.78% 9.50% 6.39%  
U.S. EQUITY 11.95% 23.00% 7.93% 23.00% 7.99% 14.43% 10.93% 10.82% 02/28/2003 
S&P 500 Index 11.69% 26.29% 26.29% 26.29% 10.00% 15.68% 12.03% 10.83%  

U.S. LARGE CAP EQUITY 11.83% 26.27% 8.32% 26.27% 9.10% 15.46% 11.78% 10.88% 02/28/2003 
S&P 500 Index 11.69% 26.29% 26.29% 26.29% 10.00% 15.68% 12.03% 10.83%  

LARGE VALUE 9.49% 11.44% 6.02% 11.44% 8.83% 11.02% 8.47% 9.26% 02/28/2003 
Russell 1000® Value Index 9.50% 11.46% 6.03% 11.46% 8.86% 10.90% 8.39% 9.29%  

LARGE GROWTH 14.16% 42.64% 10.59% 42.64% 8.86% 19.52% 14.87% 12.26% 02/28/2003 
Russell 1000® Growth Index 14.16% 42.68% 42.68% 42.68% 8.86% 19.49% 14.85% 12.35%  

U.S. MID CAP EQUITY 11.66% 16.42% 6.97% 16.42% 8.06% 12.80% – 8.49% 05/31/2018 
S&P MidCap 400 Index 11.67% 16.44% 5.80% 16.44% 8.09% 12.61% – 8.32%  

U.S. SMALL CAP EQUITY 12.85% 13.78% 6.86% 13.78% 1.66% 10.42% 7.63% 10.31% 02/28/2003 
Russell 2000® Index 14.03% 16.93% 16.93% 16.93% 2.22% 9.97% 7.15% 10.09%  

NON-U.S. EQUITY 10.12% 16.34% 5.20% 16.34% 2.91% 7.88% 4.32% 7.01% 02/28/2003 
MSCI ACWI Ex-U.S. NTR Index 9.75% 15.62% 15.62% 15.62% 1.55% 7.08% 3.83% 7.48%  

DEVELOPED MARKETS 10.73% 18.23% 5.48% 18.23% 4.42% 8.65% 4.64% 7.53% 02/28/2003 
MSCI EAFE NTR Index 10.42% 18.24% 18.24% 18.24% 4.02% 8.16% 4.28% 7.35%  
NON-U.S. EMERGING MARKETS EQUITY 7.67% 8.81% 3.99% 8.81% -3.37% 4.59% 2.95% 2.63% 03/31/2010 
MSCI Emerging Markets NTR Index 7.86% 9.83% 4.71% 9.83% -5.08% 3.68% 2.66% 2.57%  

 
 15



Portfolio performance 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

For asset allocation purposes and aggregate portfolio performance reporting, asset class category assignments for individual investment options are determined by OCIO Solutions and may differ from the 
assigned Morningstar category for a given investment. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and should not be relied 
upon to make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

Asset class return information Three 
month 

Year 
to-date 

Fiscal year 
  to-date 

One 
year 

Three 
year 

Five 
year 

Ten 
year 

Since   
inception 

Inception 
date 

FIXED INCOME 7.05% 6.81% 3.88% 6.81% -2.83% 1.69% 2.04% 4.09% 12/31/1999 
County of Ventura Fixed Income Composite 7.07% 5.90% 3.53% 5.90% -3.59% 0.96% 1.65% 4.05%  

INTERMEDIATE BOND 6.96% 6.62% 3.75% 6.62% -2.62% 1.79% 2.20% 3.50% 02/28/2003 
Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 6.82% 5.53% 3.37% 5.53% -3.31% 1.10% 1.81% 3.16%  

INTERMEDIATE CORE BOND 6.80% 5.95% 3.41% 5.95% -3.21% 1.30% 1.97% 3.39% 02/28/2003 
Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 6.82% 5.53% 3.37% 5.53% -3.31% 1.10% 1.81% 3.16%  

INTERMEDIATE CORE-PLUS BOND 7.30% 8.02% 4.46% 8.02% -1.37% 2.83% – 2.70% 05/31/2018 
Bloomberg US Universal TR USD 6.83% 6.17% 3.76% 6.17% -2.97% 1.44% – 1.52%  

GLOBAL BONDS 7.86% 8.34% 5.00% 8.34% -5.11% 0.39% – -0.20% 05/31/2018 
Bloomberg Global Aggregate Index 8.10% 5.72% 4.22% 5.72% -5.51% -0.32% – -0.32%  

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 1.33% 4.79% 2.38% 4.79% 2.16% 1.83% 1.27% 1.84% 12/31/1999 
90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 1.41% 5.26% 5.26% 5.26% 2.25% 1.91% 1.26% 1.71%  

MONEY MARKET 1.35% 5.78% 2.44% 5.78% 2.49% 2.03% 1.36% 1.56% 02/28/2003 
90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 1.41% 5.26% 5.26% 5.26% 2.25% 1.91% 1.26% 1.40%  

Portfolio inception: December 31, 1999 

 
 16



Calendar year performance 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

For asset allocation purposes and aggregate portfolio performance reporting, asset class category assignments for individual investment options are determined by OCIO Solutions and may differ from the 
assigned Morningstar category for a given investment. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and should not be relied 
upon to make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

Time weighted returns 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
Total portfolio performance (Gross) 15.47% -14.86% 11.36% 14.35% 20.16% -5.43% 14.70% 9.12% 0.05% 8.19% 
County Of Ventura SRP Custom Benchmark 15.30% -14.84% 11.53% 13.42% 20.02% -5.04% 14.01% 8.51% 0.01% 7.93% 
           

Total portfolio performance (Net) 14.93% -15.12% 11.00% 13.84% 19.66% -5.82% 14.21% 8.60% -0.48% 7.61% 
County Of Ventura SRP Custom Benchmark 15.30% -14.84% 11.53% 13.42% 20.02% -5.04% 14.01% 8.51% 0.01% 7.93% 

Asset class return information 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 
EQUITY 21.38% -17.07% 21.03% 17.49% 27.91% -8.16% 21.41% 12.34% -0.57% 9.37% 
County of Ventura Equity Composite 21.71% -16.82% 21.44% 16.22% 27.76% -8.20% 21.54% 12.30% -0.71% 9.21% 

FIXED INCOME 6.81% -12.25% -2.11% 8.59% 9.14% -1.34% 3.69% 2.82% 0.60% 6.34% 
County of Ventura Fixed Income Composite 5.90% -13.06% -2.20% 7.54% 8.83% -0.82% 3.54% 2.65% 0.55% 5.97% 

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 4.79% 1.66% 0.08% 0.55% 2.15% 1.73% 1.06% 0.43% 0.19% 0.13% 
90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 5.26% 1.50% 0.05% 0.58% 2.25% 1.86% 0.84% 0.27% 0.03% 0.03% 

 
 17



Fiscal year performance 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

For asset allocation purposes and aggregate portfolio performance reporting, asset class category assignments for individual investment options are determined by OCIO Solutions and may differ from the 
assigned Morningstar category for a given investment. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and should not be relied 
upon to make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

Time weighted returns FY 2023 FY 2022 FY 2021 FY 2020 FY 2019 FY 2018 FY 2017 FY 2016 FY 2015 FY 2014 
Total portfolio performance (Gross) 11.19% -13.50% 25.53% 4.03% 6.60% 7.72% 12.43% 1.88% 4.34% 18.32% 
County Of Ventura SRP Custom Benchmark 10.20% -12.86% 24.45% 4.35% 6.88% 7.28% 11.27% 2.39% 3.94% 15.88% 
           

Total portfolio performance (Net) 10.86% -13.73% 25.08% 3.56% 6.14% 7.28% 11.93% 1.35% 3.78% 17.69% 
County Of Ventura SRP Custom Benchmark 10.20% -12.86% 24.45% 4.35% 6.88% 7.28% 11.27% 2.39% 3.94% 15.88% 

Asset class return information           
EQUITY 17.50% -15.14% 43.80% 1.36% 6.11% 12.89% 19.52% -0.53% 5.60% 24.72% 
County of Ventura Equity Composite 17.29% -14.63% 43.11% 1.25% 5.67% 13.01% 19.55% -0.28% 5.19% 24.04% 

FIXED INCOME 1.41% -11.36% 1.64% 7.61% 7.66% -1.22% 0.01% 5.93% 2.08% 4.80% 
County of Ventura Fixed Income Composite -0.47% -11.14% 0.21% 7.84% 7.85% -1.05% -0.31% 6.00% 1.86% 4.37% 

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 3.83% 0.23% 0.13% 1.48% 2.11% 1.35% 0.72% 0.27% 0.17% 0.16% 
90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 3.75% 0.19% 0.08% 1.56% 2.30% 1.33% 0.46% 0.14% 0.02% 0.04% 
Fiscal year end: June 

 
 18



Investment performance 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Category performance and percentile rankings are calculated by Morningstar, are reflective of the peer group assigned by Morningstar, and are shown for comparison purposes. Benchmark indexes shown are 
determined by OCIO Solutions based on index assignments by Morningstar. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and 
should not be relied upon to make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

 Average annual total returns    

 
Three 
month 

Year 
to- 

date 
One 
year Three 

year Five 
year Ten 

year Since  
inception Inception date Expense ratio 

(net/gross) Expense limit 
expiration date 

Large Value           
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK LC VAL IDX CIT N 9.49% 11.44% 11.44% 8.82% 11.01% 8.45% 9.71% 09/29/1992 0.05/0.05 – 
Russell 1000® Value Index 9.50% 11.46% 11.46% 8.86% 10.91% 8.40% –    

Large Value 9.68% 11.63% 11.63% 9.74% 11.37% 8.39%    

Large Growth           
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK LC GR IDX CIT N 14.16% 42.64% 42.64% 8.85% 19.52% 14.85% 10.51% 09/28/1992 0.05/0.05 – 
Russell 1000® Growth Index 14.16% 42.68% 42.68% 8.86% 19.50% 14.86% –    

Large Growth 13.83% 36.74% 36.74% 4.68% 15.74% 12.03%    

Mid-Cap Blend           
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK S&P MIDC IDX CIT N 11.66% 16.42% 16.42% 8.04% 12.77% 9.35% 10.93% 04/30/1996 0.03/0.03 – 
S&P MidCap 400 Index 11.67% 16.44% 16.44% 8.09% 12.62% 9.27% –    

Mid Cap Blend 11.48% 16.00% 16.00% 6.83% 11.96% 8.28%    

Small Blend           
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK RUS 2000 IDX CIT N 14.11% 17.14% 17.14% 2.31% 10.17% 7.32% 7.64% 07/31/1997 0.06/0.06399 – 
Russell 2000® Index 14.03% 16.93% 16.93% 2.22% 9.97% 7.16% –    

Small Blend 12.75% 16.18% 16.18% 6.32% 10.86% 7.17%    

Small Growth           
PRINCIPAL/MULTI-MANAGER SC CIT N 12.29% 12.26% 12.26% 1.32% 10.52% 8.34% 8.72% 11/15/2013 0.64/0.64 – 
Russell 2000® Index 14.03% 16.93% 16.93% 2.22% 9.97% 7.16% –    

Small Growth 11.49% 16.68% 16.68% -2.29% 10.99% 8.09%    

Foreign Large Blend           
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK INTL EQ IDX CIT N 10.73% 18.23% 18.23% 4.42% 8.65% 4.61% 6.02% 09/28/1990 0.05/0.05 – 
MSCI EAFE NTR Index 10.42% 18.24% 18.24% 4.02% 8.16% 4.28% –    

Foreign Large Blend 9.81% 16.25% 16.25% 2.43% 7.62% 3.98%    

 
 19



Investment performance 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Category performance and percentile rankings are calculated by Morningstar, are reflective of the peer group assigned by Morningstar, and are shown for comparison purposes. Benchmark indexes shown are 
determined by OCIO Solutions based on index assignments by Morningstar. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and 
should not be relied upon to make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

 Average annual total returns    

 
Three 
month 

Year 
to- 

date 
One 
year Three 

year Five 
year Ten 

year Since  
inception Inception date Expense ratio 

(net/gross) Expense limit 
expiration date 

Diversified Emerging Mkts           
FIDELITY® EMERGING MARKETS IDX 7.67% 9.50% 9.50% -5.32% 3.41% 2.73% 2.22% 09/08/2011 0.075/0.075 – 
MSCI Emerging Markets NTR Index 7.86% 9.83% 9.83% -5.08% 3.69% 2.66% –    

Diversified Emerging Markets 7.89% 12.32% 12.32% -3.74% 4.70% 2.62%    

Intermediate Core Bond           
ALLSPRING CORE BOND CIT N 6.89% 6.28% 6.28% -3.12% 1.47% 2.05% 7.29% 01/30/1981 0.2/0.2 – 
Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 6.82% 5.53% 5.53% -3.31% 1.10% 1.81% –    

PRINCIPAL/BLKRK US AGG BD IDX CIT N 6.72% 5.66% 5.66% -3.31% 1.12% 1.83% 3.13% 09/29/2006 0.03/0.03493 – 
Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 6.82% 5.53% 5.53% -3.31% 1.10% 1.81% –    

Intermediate Core Bond 6.47% 5.59% 5.59% -3.27% 1.05% 1.66%    

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond           
PRINCIPAL/DODGE & COX INTER BD CIT N 7.30% 8.03% 8.03% -1.37% 2.71% – -0.63% 10/09/2020 0.2/0.2 – 
Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 6.82% 5.53% 5.53% -3.31% 1.10% 1.81% –    

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond 6.77% 6.22% 6.22% -2.99% 1.48% 1.93%    

Global Bond           
INVESCO INTERNATIONAL BOND R6 7.86% 8.34% 8.34% -5.12% 0.39% 1.08% 1.25% 01/27/2012 0.71/0.71 – 
FTSE WGBI Non-U.S. Index 9.91% 5.83% 5.83% -9.35% -2.77% -1.26% –    

Global Bond 7.93% 6.57% 6.57% -4.32% -0.07% 0.00%    

Money Market-Non-40 Act           
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK S/T INVESTMENT S1 1.39% 5.32% 5.32% 2.34% 1.98% 1.37% 3.36% 02/29/1988 0.09/0.09 – 
ICE BofA U.S. LIBOR 3 Month Index 1.38% 5.12% 5.12% 2.15% 2.02% 1.44% –    

 – – – – – –    

 
 20



Statistical summary 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Category performance is calculated by Morningstar, is reflective of the peer group assigned by Morningstar, and is shown for comparison purposes. Benchmark indexes shown are determined by OCIO Solutions 
based on index assignments by Morningstar. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and should not be relied upon to 
make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

 

Three year 
   return 

Three year 
   alpha 

Three year 
    beta 

Three year 
 r-squared 

Three year  
 standard  
 deviation 

Three year 
sharpe ratio 

Three year 
tracking error 

Large Value        
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK LC VAL IDX CIT N 8.82% -0.03% 1.00% 100.00% 16.74% 0.44% 0.03% 

Russell 1000® Value Index 8.86% – – – 16.74% 0.44% – 
Large Value 9.74% – – – 16.83% 0.49% – 

Large Growth        
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK LC GR IDX CIT N 8.85% 0.00% 1.00% 100.00% 20.79% 0.39% 0.06% 

Russell 1000® Growth Index 8.86% – – – 20.80% 0.39% – 
Large Growth 4.68% – – – 21.07% 0.22% – 

Mid-Cap Blend        
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK S&P MIDC IDX CIT N 8.04% -0.04% 1.00% 100.00% 20.01% 0.36% 0.05% 

S&P MidCap 400 Index 8.09% – – – 20.02% 0.36% – 
Mid Cap Blend 6.83% – – – 19.11% 0.31% – 

Small Blend        
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK RUS 2000 IDX CIT N 2.31% 0.09% 1.00% 100.00% 21.42% 0.10% 0.08% 

Russell 2000® Index 2.22% – – – 21.41% 0.09% – 
Small Blend 6.32% – – – 20.49% 0.28% – 

Small Growth        
PRINCIPAL/MULTI-MANAGER SC CIT N 1.32% -0.98% 0.91% 93.68% 20.12% 0.04% 5.40% 

Russell 2000® Index 2.22% – – – 21.41% 0.09% – 
Small Growth -2.29% – – – 22.14% -0.10% – 

 
 21



Statistical summary 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Category performance is calculated by Morningstar, is reflective of the peer group assigned by Morningstar, and is shown for comparison purposes. Benchmark indexes shown are determined by OCIO Solutions 
based on index assignments by Morningstar. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and should not be relied upon to 
make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

 

Three year 
   return 

Three year 
   alpha 

Three year 
    beta 

Three year 
 r-squared 

Three year  
 standard  
 deviation 

Three year 
sharpe ratio 

Three year 
tracking error 

Foreign Large Blend        

PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK INTL EQ IDX CIT N 4.42% 0.40% 1.03% 97.89% 17.53% 0.19% 2.58% 
MSCI EAFE NTR Index 4.02% – – – 16.85% 0.17% – 
Foreign Large Blend 2.43% – – – 17.08% 0.08% – 

Diversified Emerging Mkts        
FIDELITY® EMERGING MARKETS IDX -5.32% -0.10% 1.02% 98.30% 17.80% -0.36% 2.32% 

MSCI Emerging Markets NTR Index -5.08% – – – 17.39% -0.36% – 
Diversified Emerging Markets -3.74% – – – 17.60% -0.26% – 

Intermediate Core Bond        
PRINCIPAL/BLKRK US AGG BD IDX CIT N -3.31% 0.00% 1.00% 99.94% 7.24% -0.78% 0.18% 

Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index -3.31% – – – 7.24% -0.78% – 
ALLSPRING CORE BOND CIT N -3.12% 0.22% 1.00% 99.79% 7.28% -0.75% 0.33% 

Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index -3.31% – – – 7.24% -0.78% – 
Intermediate Core Bond -3.27% – – – 7.12% -0.80% – 

Intermediate Core-Plus Bond        
PRINCIPAL/DODGE & COX INTER BD CIT N -1.37% 1.92% 0.99% 96.83% 7.28% -0.50% 1.28% 

Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index -3.31% – – – 7.24% -0.78% – 
Intermediate Core-Plus Bond -2.99% – – – 7.32% -0.73% – 

 
 22



Statistical summary 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

Category performance is calculated by Morningstar, is reflective of the peer group assigned by Morningstar, and is shown for comparison purposes. Benchmark indexes shown are determined by OCIO Solutions 
based on index assignments by Morningstar. Returns for periods of less than one year are not annualized. Past performance is not a reliable indicator of future performance and should not be relied upon to 
make investment decisions. It is not possible to invest directly in an index.  See Important Information for further details. 

 
 

  

 

 

Three year 
   return 

Three year 
   alpha 

Three year 
    beta 

Three year 
 r-squared 

Three year  
 standard  
 deviation 

Three year 
sharpe ratio 

Three year 
tracking error 

Global Bond        

INVESCO INTERNATIONAL BOND R6 -5.12% 1.86% 0.77% 63.19% 11.07% -0.66% 7.06% 
FTSE WGBI Non-U.S. Index -9.35% – – – 11.36% -1.04% – 
Global Bond -4.32% – – – 8.72% -0.76% – 

Money Market-Non-40 Act        
PRINCIPAL/BLACKROCK S/T INVESTMENT S1 2.34% -0.02% 0.40% 86.38% 0.68% -2.28% 0.10% 

ICE BofA U.S. LIBOR 3 Month Index 2.15% – – – 0.66% -2.18% – 

 
 23



 
 

  

 

 
Historical benchmark comparison 

 County Of Ventura SRP Custom Benchmark 

 

Benchmark portfolios Weight (%) 

 

 
April 2018 

  

 Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 35.0%  

 S&P 500 Index 31.8%  

 MSCI ACWI Ex-U.S. NTR Index 15.0%  

 S&P MidCap 400 NTR Index 7.2%  

 Russell 2000® Index 6.0%  

 50% FTSE Non-USD WGBI/30% JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified/20% JPM EMBI Global Dive 4.0%  

 90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 1.0%  

 
January 2013 

  

 S&P 500 Index 40.0%  

 Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 39.0%  

 Russell 2000® Index 10.0%  

 MSCI ACWI Ex-U.S. NTR Index 10.0%  

 90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 1.0%  

 
 24



 
 

  

 

 
Historical benchmark comparison 

 County Of Ventura SRP Custom Benchmark 

 

Benchmark portfolios Weight (%) 

 

 
January 2000 

  

 S&P 500 Index 40.0%  

 Bloomberg U.S. Government/Credit Index 39.0%  

 MSCI EAFE NTR Index 10.0%  

 Russell 2000® Index 10.0%  

 90 Day U.S. Treasury Bill 1.0%  

 
 25



 
 

  

 

 
Historical benchmark comparison 

 County of Ventura Equity Composite 

 

Benchmark portfolios Weight (%) 

 

 
April 2018 

  

 S&P 500 Index 53.0%  

 MSCI ACWI Ex-U.S. NTR Index 25.0%  

 S&P MidCap 400 Index 12.0%  

 Russell 2000® Index 10.0%  

 
January 2013 

  

 S&P 500 Index 66.7%  

 MSCI ACWI Ex-U.S. NTR Index 16.7%  

 Russell 2000® Index 16.7%  

 
January 2000 

  

 S&P 500 Index 66.7%  

 Russell 2000® Index 16.7%  

 MSCI EAFE NTR Index 16.7%  

 
 26



 
 

  

 

 
Historical benchmark comparison 

 County of Ventura Fixed Income Composite 

 

Benchmark portfolios Weight (%) 

 

 
April 2018 

  

 Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 89.7%  

 50% FTSE Non-USD WGBI/30% JPM GBI-EM Global Diversified/20% JPM EMBI Global Dive 10.3%  

 
January 2013 

  

 Bloomberg U.S. Aggregate Bond Index 100.0%  

 
January 2000 

  

 Bloomberg U.S. Government/Credit Index 100.0%  

 
 27



 

Important information 

 

 
 28



Important information 

 
 

  

 

Alpha - The difference between an investment's actual returns and its expected performance, given its level of risk (as measured by beta). 
  
Beta - An investment's sensitivity to market movements. 
  
R-Squared - Ranges from 0 to 100 and reveals how closely an investment's returns track those of a benchmark index. 
  
Standard Deviation - Measures how much an investment's returns are likely to fluctuate.  
  
Sharpe Ratio - Measures how an investment balances risks and rewards. The higher the Sharpe ratio, the better the investment's historical risk-adjusted 
performance.  
  
Excess Return - The difference between a manager's return and the return of an external standard such as a passive index. 
  
Tracking Error - The standard deviation or volatility of excess returns. 
  
Percentile rankings are based on total returns in accordance with the appropriate Morningstar peer group. Returns shown for periods of less than one year 
are not annualized. All returns displayed here are after Total Investment Expense of the investment option. Investment options are subject to investment 
risk. Shares or unit values will fluctuate and investments, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost. 

 
 29



Important information 

 
 

  

 

Before investing, carefully consider the investment option objectives, risks, charges, and expenses. Contact a financial professional or visit principal.com for 
a prospectus or, if available, a summary prospectus containing this and other information. Please read it carefully before investing. 
  
This report is prepared solely for existing client use and not for any other purpose. 
  
Past performance is not indicative of future performance or a guarantee of future return. Investing involves risk, including the potential loss of some 
or all invested capital, and may yield results that are significantly different from that shown herein. 
 
 
The information in this report should not be considered investment, legal, accounting, or tax advice. Appropriate counsel, financial professionals or other 
advisors should be consulted for advice on matters pertaining to investment, legal, accounting, or tax obligations and requirements. 
  
The information in this report has been derived from sources believed to be accurate. Information derived from third-party sources, although believed to 
be reliable, has not been independently verified. 
  
No legal liability or obligation shall arise by reason of the use of this report, or any errors or omissions contained herein. 
  
The information in this report speaks as of the applicable date thereof, or the date as may be specified in the respective materials herein. Principal has no 
obligation to update any of the information provided herein. 
  
Index and/or other benchmarks are referred to for comparative purposes only; they are not necessarily intended to parallel the risk or investment 
approach of the portfolios included. 
  
This report may contain "forward-looking" information that is not purely historical in nature. Such forward-looking information may include, among other 
things, projections and forecasts regarding potential future events that may occur (collectively, "Projections"). There is no assurance, guarantee, 
representation, or warranty being made as to the accuracy of any Projections. Nothing contained herein may be relied upon as a guarantee, promise, 
forecast, or a representation as to future performance. 
  
Investing involves risk, including possible loss of principal. 
  
Asset allocation and diversification does not ensure a profit or protect against a loss. Equity investment options involve greater risk, including heightened 
volatility, than fixed-income investment options. Fixed-income investments are subject to interest risk; as interest rates rise their value will decline. 
International and global investing involves greater risks such as currently fluctuations, political/social instability, and differing accounting standards. These 
risks are magnified in emerging markets. 

 
 30



Portfolio profile
AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 

 
 31



 
 32



Investing involves risk, including possible loss of principal. Past performance is no guarantee of future results and should not be relied upon to make an 
investment decision.

The information presented has been derived from sources believed to be accurate; however, we do not independently verify or guarantee its accuracy or 
validity. Any reference to a specific investment or security does not constitute a recommendation to buy, sell, or hold such investment or security, and 
does not take account of any investor’s investment objectives or financial situation and should not be construed as specific investment advice, a 
recommendation, or be relied on in any way as a guarantee, promise, forecast or prediction of future events regarding an investment or the markets in 
general. The opinions and predictions expressed are subject to change without prior notice.

OCIO solutions and LDI solutions are provided by Investment Solutions, an advisory team within Principal Asset ManagementSM.  Principal Asset 
Management leads global asset management at Principal®.  

Custody and trust services are provided by Principal Bank®, Member FDIC, and/or Principal Trust Company®.  These services are provided under the trade 
name Principal® Custody Solutions. Principal Trust Company is a trade name of Delaware Charter Guarantee & Trust Company. 

When Principal Custody Solutions is providing investment management services, Principal Custody Solutions serves as the investment manager or 
discretionary trustee but leverages the investment expertise of Principal Asset Management.  Customers may also contract directly with Principal Asset 
Management for investment management services.  In those instances, Principal Custody Solutions serves solely in a custodial or trustee capacity.  Please 
refer to your underlying service agreements for details.

Principal Global Investors, LLC is registered with the U.S. Commodity Futures Trading Commission (CFTC) as a commodity trading advisor (CTA), a 
commodity pool operator (CPO) and is a member of the National Futures Association (NFA). Principal Global Investors advises qualified eligible persons 
(QEPs) under CFTC Regulation 4.7. Insurance products and plan administrative services provided through Principal Life Insurance Company®. 

Principal Life Insurance Company, Principal Global Investors®, Principal Bank, and Principal Trust Company are members of the Principal Financial 
Group®, Des Moines, Iowa 50392. 

© 2023, Principal Financial Services, Inc. Principal®, Principal Financial Group®, and Principal and the logomark design are registered trademarks of 
Principal Financial Services, Inc., a Principal Financial Group company, in the United States and are trademarks and services marks of Principal Financial 
Services, Inc., in various countries around the world. 

3005721-022024

Important information

 
 33



 
COUNTY OF VENTURA 

MEMORANDUM 
HUMAN RESOURCES DIVISION 

  
 
DATE:  February 15, 2024 
 
TO:  Supplemental Retirement Plan Committee 
 
FROM: Patti Dowdy, Employee Benefits Manager 
   
SUBJECT: IRS Ruling Request Board Letter Review 
 
 
Background  

During the September Supplemental Retirement Plan (SRP) Committee meeting, Ms. 
Emily Gardner, County Counsel, raised concerns regarding whether the Committee 
should have the authority to make the final decision on seeking the IRS ruling letter 
under consideration. Ms. Gardner pointed out that while the Committee has the power 
to request the determination letter according to its guidelines, the implications of this 
action would extend beyond the SRP budget. Rather, it would affect the retirement rate, 
subsequently impacting the County budget. She advised that the ultimate decision 
should rest with the Board of Supervisors.  Following this advice, the Committee 
decided to defer the final decision on obtaining the IRS letter to the Board of 
Supervisors pending a review of the fiscal impact derived from an actuarial impact study 
provided by VCERA to make an informed recommendation to the Board.  

At this time the Committee directed staff to request additional information from VCERA, 
including: 

• The total amount of the pension reserve transfer for all eligible Safe Harbor members. 

• The impact on the retirement rate for the County if the majority of eligible Safe Harbor 
members (approximately 1,700) opt for purchasing prior service credit, based on two 
assumptions: 

   - A retirement age of 52 for Safety members. 

   - A retirement age of 59 for general employees. 

Discussion 

In response to the Committee's direction, staff contacted VCERA to inquire about 
conducting a comprehensive actuarial study to better estimate the potential increase in 
pension reserves transferred to the County if the requested IRS ruling were obtained. 
VCERA estimated that the cost of such a study to answer questions about the increase 
in UAAL and the impact on employer contribution rates would be $20,000-$25,000. 



IRS Ruling Request Board Letter Review  
February 15, 2024        
Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 

VCERA offered to cover the cost of the actuarial study, meaning that it would not be 
directly billed to the County but would instead be absorbed into other administrative 
costs indirectly paid by the County via the employer rate/UAAL. 

The Committee revisited this item in December, reviewing the cost to conduct the 
requested actuarial valuation provided by VCERA.  Ms. Gardner reiterated her concern 
that the Committee was not the appropriate body to decide on funding, as the financial 
implications extend beyond the Committee's scope, affecting County funds and 
retirement rates, thereby impacting the County budget. She recommended that the final 
decision be brought before the Board of Supervisors for a vote. 

A motion was made to direct staff to prepare to present the funding decision to the 
Board of Supervisors. Staff has prepared a preliminary Board Letter, but there are 
outstanding questions regarding the Committee's recommendation and the appropriate 
party to carry the Board Letter. These matters need to be addressed by the Committee 
for staff to proceed with presenting to the Board for approval. 

Recommended Action Item 

Decide whether or not to recommend the Board of Supervisors approve the completion 
of the requested actuarial study and to allocation the funding necessary for completion. 
 
Attachment 
 

- Draft Board Letter for Authorization and Allocation of Funds to Complete the 
Required Fiscal Study Needed to Assess IRS Ruling impact. 

 
 
 
 
 



•  
 

HALL OF ADMINISTRATION L#1940 
(805) 654-2681 • FAX (805) 658-4500 • 800 South Victoria Avenue, Ventura, CA 93009 

 
 
 
 

COUNTY EXECUTIVE OFFICE 
SEVET JOHNSON, PsyD 

County Executive Officer 
 

Mike Pettit 
Assistant County Executive Officer 

 
Kaye Mand 

County Chief Financial Officer 
 

Shawn Atin 
Assistant County Executive Officer/ 

Human Resources Director 
Labor Relations 

 
  
 
 
 
March 12, 2024 
 
 
Board of Supervisors 
County of Ventura 
800 South Victoria Avenue 
Ventura, California 93009 
 
 
Subject:  Approval of, and Authorization for the Allocation of Funds for the Ventura 

County Employees Retirement Association (VCERA) to Conduct an 
Actuarial Valuation to Assess the Financial Impact to the County if an IRS 
Ruling is Obtained for the Supplemental Retirement Plan as requested by 
VCERA. 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that your Board: 

Approve of, and authorization for the allocation of funds necessary for VCERA to conduct 
an actuarial valuation, to assess the financial impact and potential increases in pension 
reserve transfers should the County choose to pursue an IRS ruling for the Supplemental 
Retirement Plan (SRP), as requested by VCERA. 

Strategic Priority 

Conducting a fiscal impact study to assess the feasibility of obtaining an IRS ruling for the 
SRP aligns with our commitment to fiscal responsibility and supports our strategic priority 
of maintaining a diverse workforce capable of effectively serving our customers' needs. 

Fiscal/Mandates Impact 

Summary of Revenues and Costs: FY 2023-24*  FY2024-25 
Revenues:  $0  $0 
Costs:     
 Direct $25,000  $0 
 Indirect-Dept $0  $0 
 Indirect-County CAP $0  $0 
 Total Cost $25,000  0$ 
 Net County Cost $25,000  $0 
 Recovered Indirect Costs $0  $0 

 



Board of Supervisors 
March 12, 2024 
Page 2 
 
 
*The costs of this action will not be incurred by the County directly. VCERA will be paying 
for services it will be incorporated into their administrative costs that are allocated to the 
County via the rates established in the actuarial valuation. 

 

 

Discussion 

Within the Ventura County Employees Retirement Association (VCERA) membership, 
there are individuals who served in positions excluded from VCERA membership 
before becoming regular County employees. Excluded positions include Extra-Help, 
Intermittent, and Part-Time roles covered by the Safe Harbor retirement plan. 
Historically, VCERA has not allowed these members to buy this excluded service due 
to Government Code section 31614.4, which prohibits public employees from 
receiving credit for the same service in two different retirement systems funded by 
public funds. This prohibition was based on the fact that the Safe Harbor Plan was 
initially established as a defined benefit (DB) plan under IRC section 401(a), and those 
who participate in the plan become entitled to a pension or retirement allowance. 

In 2008, section 31482.5 was added to the California Employees Retirement Law 
(CERL) to specifically allow members to participate in both CERL and a public 
employer’s supplemental retirement plan if three conditions are met: 

1. The CERL (VCERA) plan is the County’s primary plan, and the County has 
also adopted the Safe Harbor Plan as a supplemental plan. 

2. Employee’s participation in the Safe Harbor Plan does not interfere with the 
employee’s rights to membership in the CERL plan. 

3. The County has obtained a ruling from the IRS that the Safe Harbor Plan 
qualifies under section 401(a). 

 
In Ventura, the first two conditions have been satisfied, but the third condition remains 
outstanding as the County has not pursued a determination letter from the IRS 
regarding the qualified status of the Safe Harbor Plan. It is important to note that 
seeking a determination letter is at the discretion of the plan sponsor, and County 
Counsel has examined the County's Supplemental Retirement Plan Document, 
including the DB Safe Harbor provision, and believe it to be in compliance with all IRS 
requirements. 

To permit VCERA members to purchase service credit for prior County service under 
the Safe Harbor Plan, VCERA has requested the County pursue the required IRS 
ruling. This service credit purchase would allow active employees the opportunity to 



Board of Supervisors 
March 12, 2024 
Page 3 
 
 
purchase prior Safe Harbor DB service through VCERA, providing the employee with 
service credit from both VCERA and Safe Harbor for the same period of employment 
as they will remain eligible to receive their earned Safe Harbor benefit upon separation 
from County service. Currently, there are approximately 1,700 active County 
employees who have previously participated in the Safe Harbor Plan. 

It is noteworthy that the restriction on receiving credit for the same service in two 
different retirement systems funded by public funds does not extend to participation in 
a DC plan. Commencing in 2021, the SRP benefit type transitioned from the DB plan 
to a 457 deferred compensation (DC) plan for new employees. Consequently, VCERA 
members who previously participated in the Safe Harbor Plan can now purchase 
service credit in VCERA for the periods during which they held positions excluded 
from VCERA membership. This is contingent upon them having rolled over their Safe 
Harbor Plan service to the County's Supplemental 457 DC Plan. However, active 
employees with prior Safe Harbor DB plan are unable to rollover their benefits to the 
457 DC Plan until they separate from County service. 

The ability for VCERA members to purchase the time spent in a position covered by 
Safe Harbor prior to becoming regular County employees has long been desired by 
some County employees. While this would be a welcomed benefit to this population 
there are several considerations that should be weighed. Below we have enumerated 
some of the possible pros and cons of obtaining an IRS determination letter for the 
Safe Harbor Plan. This list is not intended to be exhaustive. 

Pros 

• VCERA members who previously worked in a VCERA ineligible position at the 
County can purchase additional VCERA service credit. The cost to buy 
excluded service through VCERA is the amount of contributions the employee 
would have paid to VCERA for the period being purchased plus the interest 
that would have accrued on these contributions since the prior service period. 
Employees can pay less interest for purchasing their Safe Harbor service if 
they complete the purchase before their separation. 

Cons 
 

• The cost of reviewing the plan for compliance with the IRS' most recent 
Cumulative List by external counsel is estimated to be around $25,000 to 
$30,000. The determination letter process will also require significant staff 
time. In addition, there is a mandatory IRS filing fee of $2,700 for a 
determination letter request. If the Committee decides to request a 
determination letter for both the defined benefit and deferred compensation 
components of the SRP, the cost of counsel fees will increase, and an 
additional IRS filing fee of $2,700 will be incurred. 



Board of Supervisors 
March 12, 2024 
Page 4 
 
 

• While we believe that the Plan(s) are in compliance, there are potential risks 
associated with an IRS review of the Plan. 

• The option for employees to purchase prior service credit through VCERA for 
their period as a Safe Harbor member (whether in the DB or 457 DC plan) 
comes at an additional cost. This is because the County will now be funding 
the employee's earned Safe Harbor benefit as well as the increase in the 
VCERA lifetime annuity benefit that the employee will receive based on the 
additional service credit that has been added to their pension calculation. 

 
The initial review of VCERA’s request was conducted by the Supplemental Retirement 
Committee (“Committee”), which is comprised of the County Executive Officer, 
Treasurer-Tax Collector, Auditor-Controller, County Counsel, and Director – Human 
Resources (or their designees) as this determination would fall under their purview as 
administrators of the plan.  
 
Although the Committee has the authority to seek the IRS determination letter based on 
its guidelines, upon a thorough examination of the request under County Counsel has 
expressed reservations about the suitability of the Committee to make this decision. 
While the Committee holds the authority to pursue the IRS determination letter within its 
guidelines, the repercussions of such an action extend beyond the confines of the SRP 
budget. Instead, it will lead to adjustments in the retirement rate, thereby affecting the 
broader County budget. Consequently, it has been concluded that the authority to 
decide the eligibility of a specific group of employees for benefits through VCERA 
should rest with the Board of Supervisors. 
 
Based on this the determination was made that the power to determine whether a 
certain group of employees should be eligible for benefits through VCERA and whether 
funding should be provided to fund the fiscal study necessary to determine the financial 
impact on the County should be a Board of Supervisors decision.   
 
Through the Committee’s review of VCERA’s request the determination was also made 
that an actuarial evaluation impact study to determine an overall cost to the County and 
the estimated pension reserves transfer increase, should the majority of the 1,700 
employees decide to purchase the prior time in Safe Harbor was needed. VCERA has 
advised that the cost of an actuarial study to answer the questions regarding the 
increase to the UAAL and impact on the employer contribution rates will total $20,000-
$25,000. VCERA has indicated that they would pay the cost of the actuarial study, 
meaning that the cost would not be direct billed to the County but instead, would 
essentially be absorbed into other administrative costs that the County pays for 



Board of Supervisors 
March 12, 2024 
Page 5 
 
 
indirectly via the employer rate/UAAL. Since the funding for the needed actuarial study 
will lead to adjustments in the retirement rate, consequently affecting the County budget 
the funding for the fiscal study required to assess the financial impact on the County 
should rest with the Board of Supervisors. 

Given that the funding for the necessary actuarial study will result in adjustments to the 
retirement rate, thus impacting the County budget, the funding approval for the fiscal 
study needed to evaluate the financial implications on the County rest with the Board of 
Supervisors. 
 
Summary 

The Committee recommends your Board approve the allocation of funds necessary for 
VCERA to conduct the actuarial valuation impact study. This study is essential for 
obtaining a thorough understanding of the total cost to the County and the potential 
increase in pension reserves transfer if the County decides to pursue the IRS ruling as 
requested by VCERA. 

This letter has been reviewed by the County Executive Office, County Counsel, and the 
Auditor-Controller’s Office. If you have any questions regarding this item, please contact 
me at (805) 654-2561 or Patti Dowdy, Employee Benefits Manager, at (805) 648-9218. 

Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Shawn Atin 
Assistant County Executive Officer/Human Resources Director 
 
 
 
Sevet Johnson, PsyD 
County Executive Officer 
 
 
c:  Jeffery S. Burgh, Auditor-Controller  
 Tiffany N. North, County Counsel 
 Mike Pettit, Assistant County Executive Officer 
 Kaye Mand, Assistant County Executive Officer/Chief Financial Officer 
 

 
 


	01_SRP Committee Mtg Agenda_2-15-24- revised 02082024
	02_SRP Meeting Minutes_FINAL_12-14-2023
	03_memo_Semi-Annual Investment Review_2-15-24
	COUNTY OF VENTURA
	MEMORANDUM
	FROM: Patty Zoll, Supplemental Retirement Program Manager

	03a_County_Of_Ventura_Retirement_Plan_DB_IAA_December 2023_Q_w_MS Ave
	04_memo_IRS Ruling Request Board Letter Review 02152024
	COUNTY OF VENTURA
	MEMORANDUM
	FROM: Patti Dowdy, Employee Benefits Manager

	04a_BL Allocation of Funds for VCERA Financial Impact Study _v1
	Pros
	Cons




